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FORM 1
WILTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

WILDLIFE & COUNTRYSIDE ACT 1981

DEFINITIVE MAP & STATEMENT OF RIGHTS OF WAY
FOR THE COUNTY OF WILTSHIRE

Notice of Application for Modification Order

To: Rights of Way Section, Environmental Services Department, Wiltshire County
Council, county Hall, Trowbridge, Wilts. BA14 8JD

.................................................

...............................................................

hereby apply for an Order under Section 53(2) of the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981
modifying the Definitive Map and Statement for the area by:-

deleting the footpath/bridieway/byway—open to all traffic (please delete the irrelevant
status) leading from (please describe the position and route of the right of way you
are referring to)

ey o BRIGUMERATI, . CORNEE., CHURLLH LOAD,
MILSTEN, . THRAwG i THE FARMY LD . . Td. RufP . Jé, .
M.”—éT.o.N : % . m. (bwym‘- ........................

.........................................................

with awidth of . . M ET. RS S

The route of the right of way is shown on the attached map.

/17W'E attach copies of the following documentary evidence and or statements of
witnesses in support of this application.

Dated /37he /'U . 2001 . Signed M“(A\S 'ﬁ&WM/‘N’U
' The Briopds ol

For a definition of the various categories of rights of way please sccﬁﬁlcaﬂ

3775TRNTC
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FORM 1
WILTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

WILDLIFE & COUNTRYSIDE ACT 1981

DEFINITIVE MAP & STATEMENT OF RIGHTS OF WAY
FOR THE COUNTY OF WILTSHIRE

Notice of Application for Modification Order

To:  Rights of Way Section, Environmental Services Department, Wiltshire County
Council, county Hall, Trowbridge, Wilts. BA14 8JD

(please insert your name or the name of the organisation making the application)
........ THE FEITNS. OF, MILSTON, ¥ B81em e by T PPlcation
of (please insert your full address) /U (LSTOMN . HO.USE.. /W (CSTOMN,. ........
PUCERINGTON,). . SALS Bu £ WILTSHIES . Sl o
hereby apply for an Order under Section 53(2) of the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981
modifying the Definitive Map and Statement for the area by:-

adding the footpath/bridteway/byway—open to all traffic (please delete the irrelevant

status) leading from (please describe the position and route of the right of way you
are referring to) SARIGMERSTOIN. CORNSE. , Mturcn  EoAD, , . .
MUESTON . % THEN . KLUNNING. PARALLEL . TO0. BA RN

Qus 2. » CQTTALE. . 6N. . RIGHT-
!A(},Q.Mﬁ;‘f;)l:,.i CKEFT .70 IR RuAPP /6, .

...............................

with A WidM/OF: 2 . AETEER cscviioszsinmmnnnn s oome
The route of the right of way is shown on the attached map.

AIWE attach copies of the following documentary evidence and or statements of
witnesses in support of this application.

Dated . (F0v. Ayl 200) Signed . Cs . Tt imas
27. “Toe Pricoss ec 4L °
For a definition of the various categories of rights of way pledse see overleaf.

3776tr.ntc
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Reproduced from the Ordnance Surve

y map with the permission of the Controller of Her Ma
Unauthorised reproduction infringes C
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Name Route used Period of use Comments
Batty H M County Series O S 1956 — 1995 Uses the route for
route recreation about 30
times a year now
obstructed with
barbed wire and soil
at Brigmerston
Broe T A Route hand drawn 1973 — 2001 Uses for recreation
on modern map but about 24 times a
not on CS line year now obstructed
by soil and barbed
wire at Brigmeston
Card P J Alongside Barn 1935 - 1980 Uses for recreation
house over stile into most Sunday
meadow but deviates evenings from 1935
off the CS line - 1950
Courage L P Alongside Barn 1995 - 2001 Uses weekly, barb
House and wall now wire obstructed the
demolished over stile route in April/June
into meadow. Not 2001
shown all along the
CS line
Courage W J Alongside Barn 1995 — 2001 Used 3 times a week
House and wall to Blocked in spring
stile into meadow. 2001 with a bank and
Not shown all along barb wire
the CS line
Dryden J Drew route alongside | 1960 — 2001 Used 2 — 3 times a
Barn House and wall week in childhood
referred to a stile into now twice a week.
area by the river Bank and wire fence
erected 2001
obstructing the route
Dryden Described route 1960 - 2001 Used 3 times a week
alongside Barn when children were
House and wall into young. “001 builder
field pulled down the wall
and stile put bank on
the right of way
Foyle CD Described route 1980 — 2000 Used once a month
between the farm route signed stopped
and barn House from using 2001
alongside wall now
demolished over stile
into water meadows
Freeman Route alongside 1932 - 1998 Used it first with

Barn House and wall
now demolished

Milston
Brownies/Guides
Use it about twice a
month. Has seen
other people using it.
Stile erected at end
of Barn Cottage wall
in 1980




Gow AC

County series route,
marked where the
stile was

1967 — 2001

Blocked in 2001 with
old vehicles, building
materials and stile
removed. Had used
daily

Haines J M

County Series route
to stile

1980 - 1996

Walked it but didn’t
say how often

Henman J

County Series route

1991 - 2000

Used almost daily
during the summer.
Saw other dog
walkers on it. Stile
removed by owner of
Barn House in 2001
who put up barb wire
across the way earth
bank and saplings
planted on route

Henman RW

Alongside barn
House and wall to
stile

1991 — 2001

Used route at least
once a week.
Developer of barn
house removed stile,
erected an earth
bank on the route.
Saw former owner of
Barn House whilst
using the route never
challenged

King M

County Series route

1990 - 2001

Used for dog
walking. Signed as a
public right of way

Lester-Card

County Series route

1973 - 2001

Used irregularly

Lloyd-Price RM

County Series route

1979 — 2000

Knew former owner
of Barn House, right
of way never in the
bounds of that
property. Present
owner has
incorporated the path
into his garden

Lloyd-Price Z

County Series route

1980 ~ 2000

Used it about 25
times a year. Former
owner of Barn house
was great gardener
and was often there
or in his fruit cage so
he would have
known lots of people
used the path

Loye MB

County Series route
between the farm
and Barn House

1990 - 2000

Used once or twice a
year

Love W E

Approximately
County Series route,
described as same

1990 - 2000

Part of dog walking
circuit




route as other
witnesses past barn
house and former
wall to stile

Mortimer AC Approximate County | 1950s onwards Used it once or twice
Series route on a month. 15 feet
signed path to wide
meadow

Mortimer E B County Series route | 1940 — 1950, 1970 — | Used it weekly in the
on sign posted path | 2001 1940s recently

approximately 12
times a year. Width
15 feet

Parsons N | No route marked or 1958 — 1975 Walked route as a
identifiable route child [born 1952].
described

Piece Y R Partially County 1951 - 2000 Used it
Series route approximately 10
described as Cuckoo times a year. Saw
Lane [other witness other people using it
has described it as
this]. Described as
foolowing wall to stile
into meadows

Reed H J Couty Series route 1971 — 78 regular 2001 old wall
but not all the way. use demolished by
Route described developer of Barn
same as other 1n the 80s and 90s House stile also
witnesses alongside | irregular use removed and earth
former wall to stile bank put across the
into field right of way. Was

signed

Rennie J J County Series route | 1948 — 2001 Route signed as right

of way Use 24 times
a year, saw other
users. Obstructed
with barbed wire and
earth bank

Rennie M County Series route | 1960 — 2001 Used it with her

children, grand
children and dogs.
Saw other users,
was signed

Sheppard A Approximate County | 1977 — 1998 Use about 6 times a
Series route year, width 3 metres,

signed

Sommerton S G Partially County 1952 - 1999 Used about 12 times
Series route past a year, width 8 — 10
barn house and wall feet. Signed.
to stile to meadow Obstructed by barb

wire and high bank

Spreadbury A J County Series route | 1936 — 2000 Dog walking route 70

to 100 times a year.
Width 12 to 14 feet.




Barn House wall
removed in January
2001 with stile
obstructed with

barbed wire
Spreadbury F County Series route | 1916 — 1965 Used it since
childhood 50 or 60
times a year
Stephenson EW Approximate County | 1974 — 1980 Used about 20 times
Series route, in the period 1074 —
described as Cuckoo 1980, saw other
Lane walkers. Exit onto
Cuckoo Lane has
recently been
blocked
Stephenson A M As above As above As above
Stephenson-Jarrett No route drawn on Walked in childhood | Walked 5 times a
the map but [born 1964] year, width 4 to 5

described as Cuckoo
lane leading past
dwelling and wall to
stile into meadow

metres

Sturgess M E

Partially on County
Series route,
described alongside
Barn house and wall

1965 — 1970 and
1984 -1995

Used for dog
walking. Route
marked on the Tithe
award map

Tamplin L

County Series route

1996 — 2000

At least twice a week
dog walking, 3
metres wide and
signposted, location
common knowledge

Tamplin P H

County Series route

1996 — 2000

Difficult to use when
wet so use probably
less than once a
month. Well defined
route

Taylor H

County Series route

1992 - 1999

Daily use walking
and cycling. Width
about 4 metres, new
building has
encroached on it.
Lived in barn cottage
and his bedroom
window looked out
onto the path. Was
signed

Toomer C J

County series route

1980 - 1986

Walked with a dog
about 6 times a year.
Width § metres

ToomerR J

Partially County
Series route.
Described alongside
' Barn Cottage and
‘wall to stile into

1992 - 1998

Used it for dog
walking about 5
times a year, width 5
metres




meadow

Vandeleur S

Partially County
Series route but
described as
following track past
barn house over a
stile

1994 - 2001

Use it at least once a
week from May to
August on foot and
cycle. Signed. Well
used path

Weaver B

County Series route
and route through
farmyard

1937 — 1955 last
used 1985

As a child used it
daily, gatas always
open
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Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006 (c. 16) 27
Part 5 — National Parks and the Broads

(2) After paragraph (h) insert—

“(i) a National Park authority; or
() the Broads Authority.”

(3) Omit “or” preceding paragraph (h).

PART 6

RIGHTS OF WAY

Rights of way and mechanically propelled vehicles

66  Restriction on creation of new public rights of way

(1) No public right of way for mechanically propelled vehicles is created after
commencement unless it is—

(@)
(b)

created (by an enactment or instrument or otherwise) on terms that
expressly provide for it to be a right of way for such vehicles, or
created by the construction, in exercise of powers conferred by virtue of
any enactment, of a road intended to be used by such vehicles.

(2) For the purposes of the creation after commencement of any other public right
of way, use (whenever occurring) of a way by mechanically propelled vehicles
is to be disregarded.

67  Ending of certain existing unrecorded public rights of way

(1) An existing public right of way for mechanically propelled vehicles is
extinguished if it is over a way which, immediately before commencement —

(@)
(b)

was not shown in a definitive map and statement, or

was shown in a definitive map and statement only as a footpath,
bridleway or restricted byway.

But this is subject to subsections (2) to (8).

(2) Subsection (1) does not apply to an existing public right of way if —

(@)

(b)

(e)

it is over a way whose main lawful use by the public during the period
of 5 years ending with commencement was use for mechanically
propelled vehicles,

immediately before commencement it was not shown in a definitive
map and statement but was shown in a list required to be kept under
section 36(6) of the Highways Act 1980 (c.66) (list of highways
maintainable at public expense),

it was created (by an enactment or instrument or otherwise) on terms
that expressly provide for it to be a right of way for mechanically
propelled vehicles,

it was created by the construction, in exercise of powers conferred by
virtue of any enactment, of a road intended to be used by such vehicles,
or

it was created by virtue of use by such vehicles during a period ending
before 1st December 1930.

(3) Subsection (1) does not apply to an existing public right of way over a way if —




28 Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006 (c. 16)
Part 6 — Rights of way

(a) before the relevant date, an application was made under section 53(5)
of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (c. 69) for an order making
modifications to the definitive map and statement so as to show the
way as a byway open to all traffic,

(b) before commencement, the surveying authority has made a
determination under paragraph 3 of Schedule 14 to the 1981 Act in
respect of such an application, or

(c) before commencement, a person with an interest in land has made such
an application and, immediately before commencement, use of the way
for mechanically propelled vehicles —

() was reasonably necessary to enable that person to obtain access
to the land, or
(i) would have been reasonably necessary to enable that person to
obtain access to a part of that land if he had had an interest in
that part only.

(4) “The relevant date” means —
(a) inrelation to England, 20th January 2005;
(b) in relation to Wales, 19th May 2005.

(5) Where, immediately before commencement, the exercise of an existing public
right of way to which subsection (1) applies —
(a) was reasonably necessary to enable a person with an interest in land to
obtain access to the land, or

(b) would have been reasonably necessary to enable that person to obtain
access to a part of that land if he had had an interest in that part only,

the right becomes a private right of way for mechanically propelled vehicles
for the benefit of the land or (as the case may be) the part of the land.

(6) For the purposes of subsection (3), an application under section 53(5) of the
1981 Act is made when it is made in accordance with paragraph 1 of Schedule
14 to that Act.

(7)  For the purposes of subsections (3)(c)(i) and (5)(a), it is irrelevant whether the
person was, immediately before commencement, in fact —

(a) exercising the existing public right of way, or
(b) able to exercise it.

(8) Nothing in this section applies in relation to an area in London to which Part 3
of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (c. 69) does not apply.

(9) Any provision made by virtue of section 48(9) of the Countryside and Rights
of Way Act 2000 (c. 37) has effect subject to this section.

68  Presumed dedication of restricted byways and use by pedal cycles etc.

(1) Amend section 31 of the Highways Act 1980 (c. 66) (dedication of highway
presumed after public use for 20 years) as follows.

(2) Atfter subsection (1) insert—

“(1A) Subsection (1)—
(a) is subject to section 66 of the Natural Environment and Rural
Communities Act 2006 (dedication by virtue of use for
mechanically propelled vehicles no longer possible), but

bR




Path

16,

17.

18.

HW-

Description of Path Approximste
Length
C.R,B. From the northern end of 800 yards

Durrington path No. 12 leading north
across the Ford and north-east along
the cart track past Brigmerston Farm
to Church Road, U/c.10006,

F.,P, From path No. 6 leading 75 yards
north across the River Avon by the new
footbridge to rosd U/c.10006, east of
Milston Church.

F.P. From the western end of 200 yards
road U/c,10002 at Milston Bridge
leading west along the north bank of the
Rlver Avon to path No. 17 at the new
footbridge.

C.R.B, From the Hampshire County 1400 yards
boundary near Hare Warren, west of
Devil's Ditch, leading north and
north-west to Figheldean path No., 26
at Dunch Hil1l,

Wigth

+ 44
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Tithe award Allotments

Landowner | Allotment Occupier Name & State of Area
No. description Cultivation
of land or
premises
Charles 16 Himself Bwad mead Meadow 7a2r
Edward
Rendall
Ditto 17 Himself Gudgeon Meadow 4a 1r 5p
mead
Ditto 10 Himself Court Heme Pasture 2a 10p
Ditto 11 Himself Homestead 1a 27p
Ditto 64 Himself Plantation 2a18p
Ditto 7 Himself Farm Yard 17p
Ditto 9 Himself Farm Yard 20p
Ditto 10 Himself Willow bead Meadow 3p
Ditto 12 Himself Upper mead | Meadow 3a1rb5p
Ditto 4 Charles House and 35p
Edward Carpenters
Rendall and shop
Rolfe
Robert
Ditto 5 Robert Gardens 15p
House,
Rolfe
Robert and
Henry
Peviett
Ditto 8 James Sims | Cottage and 34p
and William gardens
Hopgood
Ditto 11 John Smith | Cottage and 1r1p
and John garden
Harding
Reverend 18 Reverend Gudgeon 2a 3r 8p
Peter Hall James meadow
(Glebe) Ellaby and
Charles
Edward
Rendall

Roads Rivers and waste 104a 3r 37p
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TAB/QA, 6th Pebruary, 1951.

R. B, Baytlett, Baq.,
Adélaon House,
Mileton

Durrinzcon,

Wilte,

Deay 31ir,

The following are my obsgpvutions on the plans sand
atatements rolating to the aiey of rights of way:-

The oert track or unnstalled road which you refer to in
your deascription of path Ne. 2 contimmes sguthwards to the
westorn end of puth No. 1gafter ovossing & ford, I think this
should be added to your sbheduls, bus I should be giad to have
your observations as to whether this is & public right of way
throughout its whole length.

Many of the tracka acrose Brigmerston Down, although at
present inaccessible to the public, undoubtedly form part of
blic ways which run thy othar parishes., I think perhape
¥y sho be included in the schedule as they may at some
future be restored to public use. If this is gorrect thias
would invelve the following additicns to your schedulet~

“ﬁm.lﬂn_l- From the sastern enmd of path No. 5 leading
across path No. 9 and a ford over Nine Mile River,
crossing z:t Noa. 10 and 11 near the diteh and aonun:iu:
east to i Junction with path Wo. 12 neer the county b ary

at Hare Warren. Length 3200 yardas.

o Prom ho eastern end of path No. 5 leading
u%ot urogs h Ro« 9 and a ford over Nine Mile

River, thence asrcss path No. 10 acroes Milston Down to ite
Junetion with Fath No. 11. Length 2800 yarde.

From the northern parish boundary near Goats
o%"’umth eorces pathe Nos. 7 and 8 to the scuthem

w
parist bouaury et Mileton Pirs. Length 2500 yarde.




. path No. 1%. From the north-eaestern parish boundary
1eading south-west across paths Nos. 7, 11, and 8 to the
southern parish boundary towards Bulford Camp. Length 2900
yards,.

ath . ‘From the noﬁthﬂrn parish boundary near Goats
Wood leeding aout!ihnat crossing guths Nos. 7, 10, and 12,
rormi?g a junctionwith path No. O, and then erossing paths

Nos. and 14, thence leading to the parish and county
boundary towards Parkhouse camp. Length 3100 yards.

E%tg No, 12. From the north-eastern parish and county

boundary at Hare Warren, leading south<west, making & Jjunotion
with path No. 7, crossing paths Nos, 11 and 8, to the southern
parish boundary towards Bulford Camp. Length 2500 yards. ;

ath No, 13, From the eastern parish and county boundary
near The Belit, leading south-west crossing path No. 11 to the
southern parish boundary towards the Rifle Ranges.
Length 1270 yards.

I should be glad to have your views on these guestions

at your early convenlence.

Yours faithfully,

County Surveyor.
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title slip which describes the issue as ‘Ordnance Survey of Great Britain. Part
the VII*®, Containing the Central Part of Wiltshire, A Portion of Somersetshire,
and the remaining Part of Hampshire, Comprised in Plates No. 14, and 19"."
On the early states no borders were engraved—possibly to facilitate the
mounting of different sheets as a unit for one county, although on some copies
a separately engraved border has been pasted on (RGS, Duke of Wellington
set). The marginal imprints read ‘Published 14th, Augt. 1817, by Coll. Mudge,
Tower,’ and ‘Engraved at the Drawing Room in the Tower, under the Direction
of Col'. Mudge, by Benjn. Baker & Assistants—The Writing by Ebenr. Bourne.”
There may be more than one state of the map in this early period.

2) James Gardner printings (1824—40)

In 1824, James Gardner, former trigonometrical surveyor with the Board of
Ordnance, was appointed agent for the sale of the Ordnance maps. In the
bottom border of the map he was permitted to have engraved ‘Sold by Ja*
Gardner, Agent for the Sale of the Ordnance Maps 163, Regent Street, London’,'2
In addition, ‘Printed by Ramshaw' is added in the bottom margin.'® The
border has been completed on all sides: and, probably in more than one state,
we may expect to encounter minor revisions to topography.

3) First electrotype printings (1850s)

‘Printed from an Electrotype’ is not added below the bottom border, but by
analogy to other sheets a duplicate plate may have been first made c¢1850, A
number of changes may be noted. The Gardner and Ramshaw imprints have
been deleted. The numbers of adjacent sheets have been added within borders,
and an arabic sheet number by the roman in the north-east corner. The first
railway information, namely the Wilts & Somerset Railway—serving Trowbridge
and terminating abruptly in open country at Westbury station—has been
inserted. The BM copy is accession-stamped 1854,

The Index to the Tithe Survey, showing parish boundaries, was based on an

ZEngraved at the Drawing Room in the Towar under the Dire

electrotype duplicate of this printing but in an earlier state which lacks the
Wilts & Somerset Railway.

4) Middle electrotype printings (1860s)

A new inner edge has been added to the border, and values for latitude and
longitude within it. Further railway material has been inserted including the
Wilts Somerset & Weymouth Railway (Salisbury Branch), the Berks & Hants
Railway and a line (unnamed) following the Roman Road to Silchester. The
BM copy is accession-stamped 1863 and bears the 0S embossed stamp 1863.

Other electrotypes made in the 1860s are exemplified by the RMA copy, the
duplicate plate for which was made in 1865, but the map actually printed in
1866. Additions include a branch line from the Berks & Hants Railway to serve
Marlborough and a number of spot heights.

5) Late electrotype printings (post 1870, David & Charles facsimile)

Changes made after the 1860s, probably effected on several electrotypes,
recorded further railway construction. A new electrotype plate was made in
1871, "*but the map published by David & Charles is printed from an OS Record
Copy, the electrotype plate for which was made in 1891 and the map actually
printed in 1893. Railways have been added to June 1882 and new material
(since the 1860s) includes the Swindon Marlborough & Andover Railway.
Numerous spot heights have been added to the plate—some using the con-
vention of an arrow pointing to a number.

We may sum up by saying that the map published in facsimile is a composite
document embodying material from a succession of dates. The engraving of
1817 (based on a survey 1808—16) remains intact over much of the sheet.
The maijor revisions result from the periodic insertion of railway material.

J.B. H.
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state, printed froma press in the Tower, were then circulated for corrections
to be made by well-informed gentry within the county: again, as with sheet
19, published on the same day, it is possible that Sir Richard Colt Hoare cast
his eye over a proof.®

PUBLICATION HISTORY

The main stages in the revision of the map are outlined below, although these
should not beregarded as a definitive carto-bibliography embracing all printings
where addition or deletion has produced alteration to the copper-plate or its
successive electrotypes. Nonetheless, it will assist historians in assessing the
extent of revision between the first printing of 1817 and that reproduced by
David & Charles, and allow isolated copies, in a variety of local map collections,
to be dated approximately.

1) Early printings (1817—-c1824)
Sheet 14 was first published on 14 August 1817, as one of a pair of sheets
(OS numbers 14, 19) issued on the same day, and both measuring ¢29 x 23in.?
In common with a band of sheets occupying central England, the reason for
this reduction of size from the larger sheets (36in x 24in) employed elsewhere
is not clear, although it may be related to the projection of the map from in-
dependent meridians at Greenwich and Butterton Hill, with the result that the
intervening country would not divide into equal rectangles.'® The influence of
projection on the construction of the map is also confirmed by the fact that
it does not form a right angle at the north-east corner and the northern neat
line is about half-an-inch shorter than the southern: it was along the tapering
eastern edge of sheet 14 that part of the discontinuity arising from sheets
projected from separate meridians had been reconciled.

Sheets 14 and 19 do not coincide with the county boundaries of the area they
cover, although the traditional practice of the Board of Ordnance in attempting
to issue the sheets in relation to a county, is reflected in a contemporary printed

title slip which describes the issue as 'Ordnance Survey of Great Britain. Part
the VIIth. Containing the Central Part of Wiltshire, A Portion of Somersetshire,
and the remaining Part of Hampshire, Comprised in Plates No. 14, and 19°."t
On the early states no borders were engraved—possibly to facilitate the
mounting of different sheets as a unit for one county, although on some copies
a separately engraved border has been pasted on (RGS, Duke of Wellington
set). The marginal impfints read ‘Published 14th, Augt. 1817, by Col'. Mudge,
Tower,” and ‘Engraved at the Drawing Room in the Tower, under the Direction
of Col!. Mudge, by Benjn. Baker & Assistants—The Writing by Ebenr. Bourne.’
There may be more than one state of the map in this early period.

2) James Gardner printings (1824-40)

In 1824, James Gardner, former trigonometrical surveyor with the Board of
Ordnance, was appointed agent for the sale of the Ordnance maps. In the
bottom border of the map he was permitted to have engraved ‘Sold by Jas.
Gardner, Agent for the Sale of the Ordnance Maps 163, Regent Street, London’. '2
In addition, ‘Printed by Ramshaw’ is added in the bottom margin.'® The
border has been completed on all sides; and, probably in more than one state,
we may expect to encounter minor revisions to topography.

3) First electrotype printings (1850s)

'Printed from an Electrotype’ is not added below the bottom border, but by
analogy to other sheets a duplicate plate may have been first made ¢1850. A
number of changes may be noted. The Gardner and Ramshaw imprints have
been deleted. The numbers of adjacent sheets have been added within borders,
and an arabic sheet number by the roman in the north-east corner. The first
railway information, namely the Wilts & Somerset Railway—serving Trowbridge
and terminating abruptly in open country at Westbury station—has been
inserted. The BM copy is accession-stamped 1854.

The Index to the Tithe Survey, showing parish boundaries, was based on an -
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SHEET 77 DEVIZES

Sheet 77 of the David & Charles edition was sheet 14, named Devizes, in the
Old Series of Ordnance Survey 1in maps.

SURVEY

The survey of Wiltshire began in 1793 when the triangulation® of Dorset was
extended northwards, by Captain William Mudge and Isaac Dalby, to observe
trigonometrical stations at Old Sarum, Four Mile Stone (on the road from
Salisbury to Devizes) and Beacon Hill near Amesbury. These observations were
continued in 1794 and, in June of that year, the measurement of the base-line
of verification on Salisbury Plain was put in hand. This base extended from Old
Sarum Castle (where ‘Gun End of Base’ is marked on sheet 14: an upturned
gun muzzle marked the exact site) to Beacon Hill near Amesbury, and was
measured with a hundred-foot steel chain.? As Mudge reports . ... great pains
were taken to produce an accurate result’, and his detailed description of the
stages in the operation can leave us in little doubt as to the meticulous care
exercised with the geodetic framework for the first 1in maps, although we
should not forget, that in this early period at least, the trigonometrical survey
was regarded as an end in itself.

The interior triangulation, extending the framework of precisely located
points to many other local landmarks—including church spires, prehistoric
earth works, windmills and clumps of trees—was completed in the early
1800s 'under the direction of Lieutenant-Colonel William Mudge and
Captain Thomas Colby.

The local topographical survey was undertaken—apart from the line of the
Mariborough turnpike in the north of the sheet surveyed in 1816—between
1807 and 1811 at a uniform scale of 2in to 1 mile. It was executed by the Royal
Military Surveyors and Draftsmen, and probably assisted by local surveyors
hired for the task. Their methods seem to have included the use of compasses to

Reibeayo wioertnd to S 892

All righte of reproduction reseved.

take angular measurements, and pacing or the perambulator to establish
distances within the triangulated framework. The field parties were in receipt of
supplementary pay for every square mile successfully surveyed and
planned.?® Copies of the fair drawings of this work are preserved in the British
Museum. *

DRAWING AND ENGRAVING

From the nine field drawings relating to sheet 77 in whole or part,a final draft
was prepared for the engraver at a scale of 1in to 1 mile. This reduction was
undertaken by Thomas Yeakell,® also a Royal Military Surveyor, whose office
was in the Drawing Room of the Tower of London. He may have been assisted
by other members of the Corps, some of whom returned to work in the Tower
after a summer season in the field. A revision and selection of material took
place at this stage. For instance the milestones (ms) indicated along several
roads on the drawings have been omitted from the engraved map; there are
minor revisions to the spelling of place-names (eg Fifield, west of Marlborough,
becomes Fyfield) ; and some of the descriptions of antiquities on the drawing
have been edited for the engraver. The drawings for the Salisbury Plain area
give the appearance of being executed with particular care : the hill sketching is
carefully done by the use of a fine black colour wash ; settlements are shown in
red, roads buff and the Kennet & Avon Canal in green. ¢ As befits a region rich in
prehistoric earthworks both the drawings and the engraved sheets are some-
thing of a landmark in the history of the Ordnance Survey's depiction of
archaeological sites. It seems likely that on this sheet, as on sheet 19 (D & C 76)
to the west, Sir Richard Colt Hoare (1758-1838), the Wiltshire antiquary,
had a hand in the inclusion of so much specialised detail.”

An engraver's workshop had been set up in the Tower after 1801 with
Benjamin Baker (formerly in private practice in Islington) as principal engraver.
The lettering was cut by Ebeneezer Bourne, one of his four assistant engravers
at this date. Proof impressions of the map, both in outline and later finished
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Enlarged extract from Popular Edition of 1919 1 inch Ordnance Survey
map
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Zngrued at the ORDNANCE SURVEY OFFICE, Sovtiamptan .

Surveyed in 1882-8 and Puldisiied in 1892 -3.

Revisodin I897. and in.1903-5.

Revised (3% Rerisione ) in. 1813,

Published &y Colonel Sir Charles Clos e, KBE,CB.CM6..Dixector General.
Frinted at the Ordnance Survey Offico, Southampton..1918.
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Key for 1 inch Ordnance Survey map revised in 1913 and printed in 1919
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